
Democratic Services Contact Officer: 03450 450 500 Democratic.Services@scambs.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

23 January 2020 

 

To: Chairman – Councillor Jose Hales 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor Clare Delderfield 
 All Members of the Grants Advisory Committee - Councillors Dr. Claire Daunton, 

Sue Ellington and Peter McDonald 
Quorum: 3 
 
Substitutes: Councillors Bunty Waters, Dr. Shrobona Bhattacharya, Mark Howell, 

Heather Williams, Bill Handley, Dr. Martin Cahn and Sarah Cheung Johnson 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of GRANTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE, which will be 
held in the MONKFIELD ROOM - SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL at South Cambridgeshire 
Hall on FRIDAY, 31 JANUARY 2020 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
Liz Watts 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 PAGES 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting  1 - 4 
 To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting held 

on 16 December 2019 as a correct record. 
 

   
4. Community Chest: Funding Applications  5 - 16 
 
5. Mobile Warden Schemes - Lesley McFarlane  17 - 26 
 
6. Date of next meeting   

 

 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

Cambourne Business Park 

Cambourne 

Cambridge 

CB23 6EA 

t: 03450 450 500 

f: 01954 713149 

www.scambs.gov.uk 



 Friday 28 February 2020, starting at 10:00am.  
   

 

  



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council offices 

 
While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall, you also have a 
responsibility for your own safety, and that of others. 
 
Security 

When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to Reception, sign in, 
and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving the building, please sign out and return the 
Visitor badge to Reception. 
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic Services on 03450 450 
500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 

In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the nearest escape route; 
from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside the 
door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park opposite the staff  entrance 

 Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a minimum of 1.5 
hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire wardens or the fire brigade. 

 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 

If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 

We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our agendas and minutes. 
We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and 
we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  There are 
disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are available in 
the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter 
and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing 
aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 

Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 

We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, filming and photography 
at Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long as proceedings 
at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of social media during meetings to bring Council 
issues to the attention of a wider audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, 
please switch your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 

You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard, poster or other 
similar item.  Failure to do so, will result in the Chairman suspending the meeting until such items are 
removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chairman will warn the person 
concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If 
there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call 
for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be suspended until order has been restored. 
 
Smoking 

Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. No one is 
allowed to smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of 
those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 

Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  You are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 

   

mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk


 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
The law allows Councils to consider a limited range of issues in private session without members of the Press and 
public being present.  Typically, such issues relate to personal details, financial and business affairs, legal privilege 
and so on.  In every case, the public interest in excluding the Press and Public from the meeting room must outweigh 
the public interest in having the information disclosed to them.  The following statement will be proposed, seconded 
and voted upon.   
 
"I propose that the Press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following item 
number(s) ….. in accordance with Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that, if 
present, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) ….. of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.” 
 
If exempt (confidential) information has been provided as part of the agenda, the Press and public will not be able to 
view it.  There will be an explanation on the website however as to why the information is exempt.   

Notes 
 
(1) Some development control matters in this Agenda where the periods of consultation and representation 

may not have quite expired are reported to Committee to save time in the decision making process. 
Decisions on these applications will only be made at the end of the consultation periods after taking into 
account all material representations made within the full consultation period. The final decisions may be 
delegated to the Corporate Manager (Planning and Sustainable Communities). 

 

(2) The Council considers every planning application on its merits and in the context of national, regional and 
local planning policy. As part of the Council's customer service standards, Councillors and officers aim to 
put customers first, deliver outstanding service and provide easy access to services and information. At all 
times, we will treat customers with respect and will be polite, patient and honest. The Council is also 
committed to treat everyone fairly and justly, and to promote equality. This applies to all residents and 
customers, planning applicants and those people against whom the Council is taking, or proposing to take, 
planning enforcement action.  More details can be found on the Council's website under 'Council and 
Democracy'. 



 

 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Grants Advisory Committee held on 
Monday, 16 December 2019 at 10.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Jose Hales – Chairman 
  
 
Councillors: Dr. Claire Daunton Sue Ellington 
 Peter McDonald  
 
Officers in attendance for all or part of the meeting: 
  
Lesley McFarlane (Development Officer) 
Ellen Bridges (Project Officer) 
Aaron Clarke (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Councillor John Williams (Lead Member for Finance) was in attendance, by invitation. 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Councillor Clare Delderfield sent an Apology for Absence 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Councillor Claire Daunton declared a non-pecuniary interest in Fulbourn Primary School 

as the Member for the ward. 
 
Councillor Sue Ellington declared a non-pecuniary interest in Care Network as a trustee of 
the organisation. 

  
3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The Grants Advisory Committee authorised the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the 

minutes of the meeting held 27 September 2019. 
  
4. COMMUNITY CHEST: FUNDING APPLICATIONS 
 
  Applicant Village(s) 

affected 
Description Total 

applied 
for (£) 

Total 
recomm 

ended (£) 

Additional 
conditions/ 
comments 

 
1 

 
Duxford 
Lawn Tennis 
Club 

 
Duxford and 
surrounding 
villages 

 
Resurfacing the 
court 
particularly the 
new net posts. 
 

 
1,000.00 
 
 

 
1,000.00 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Grants Advisory Committee Monday, 16 December 2019 

 

 
2 

 
Hauxton 
Village Hall 
Charity  

 
Hauxton and 
neighbouring 
villages  
 

 
To install library 
shelving to 
create a self-
service library 
facility and a 
couple of 
lockers in their 
new village hall 

 
1,000.00 
 
 

 
1,000.00 
 

 
 

 
3 

 
Sawston 
Church 
Institute 

 
Sawston 
 

 
To replace 
smoke laden 
(from 80s) 
ceiling 
tiles/framework 

 
1,000.00 
 

 
1,000.00 

 
 

 
4 

 
Hinxton 
Parish 
Council  

 
Hinxton and 
surrounding 
villages  

 
To help 
towards 
replacing a 
train on the 
playground  

 
1,000.00 

 
1,000.00  

 
Subject to the 
Parish 
Council 
match 
funding 
£1,000 
towards the 
project (The 
committee 
appreciates 
the Parish 
Council is 
small with only 
260 electors) 

 
5 

 
Gamlingay 
Community 
Centre 

 
Gamlingay 
and 
surrounding 
villages  
 

 
To replace 
worn out bowls 
carpet and 
winder 

 
1,000.00 

 
Defer 

 
Additional 
information 
required, and 
the committee 
would like the 
Parish Council 
to donate £500 
towards the 
equipment.  

 
6 

 
Meadow 
Primary 
School  

 
Balsham and 
surrounding 
villages  

 
Redeveloping 
their forest 
school 

 
975.00 
 

 
Nil 

 
The committee 
would like the 
application to 
come from the 
PTfA 
 

 
7 

 
Fulbourn 
Primary 
School PTfa 

 
Fulbourn 

 
Modernising 
the library and 
reading spaces  

 
1,000.00 

 
Defer 

 
Additional 
information 
required 
regarding the 
wider 
community 
and support 
from the 
Parish Council  
 

Page 2



Grants Advisory Committee Monday, 16 December 2019 

 

 
8 

 
Fowlmere 
Recreation 
Ground  

 
Fowlmere 

 
Re-gravelling 
the car park 

 
1,000.00 

 
Nil 

 
Given the 
Parish Council 
is considering 
upgrading the 
changing 
rooms the 
committee felt 
the upgrading 
of the car park 
and changing 
rooms should 
be one project 
with a clear 
indication of 
support from 
the Parish 
Council. The 
committee 
would 
welcome 
another 
application 
with both 
elements. 
Officer is 
happy to 
support them 
with any future 
application. 

 
9 

 
Oakington 
Vikings 
Youth 
Football Club 

 
Oakington 
and 
surrounding 
villages  

 
Purchase a 
new line 
marking 
machine  

 
1,000.00 

 
1,000.00 

 
 

 
10 

 
Parkrun UK 

 
Cambourne  

 
To start-up 
Cambourne 
Junior Parkrun 

 
1,000.00  

 
725.00 

 
Subject to the 
Parish 
Council 
providing 
£725 funding.  

 
11 

 
Active New 
Communities 

 
Northstowe  

 
Purchase a 
pool of sports 
equipment  

 
1,000.00 

 
1,000.00 

 

 

  
5. SERVICE SUPPORT GRANTS - LESLEY MCFARLANE 
 
 The committee noted the reports on the Citizen Advice Bureau (CAB), Cambridge Council 

for Voluntary Service (CCVS) and the Care Network.  
 
It was commented that all three organisations were on track with regards to their provided 
services and there were no issues highlighted. 
 

Page 3



Grants Advisory Committee Monday, 16 December 2019 

 

Farmland Museum 
 
It was suggested that the Farmland Museum make contact with the National Farming 
Union (NFU) with regard to procuring additional funding. 
 
It was agreed that Peter McDonald & Anna Bradnam would approach the NFU & Country 
Landowners Association on their behalf. It was noted that Anna Bradnam was a trustee of 
the NFU. 
 
It was agreed that Peter McDonald would liaise with Visit Cambridge with a view to 
improving the Farmland Museum’s use of the site. 
 
It was agreed to add a section on the Community Chest webpage to state that the Council 
‘strongly recommends’ that all applicants subscribe to the CCVS service. 
 
The Chairman issued a statement to thank Gemma Barron for all of her work (and the 
team) during her time at the council. 

  
6. EXTENSION OF MOBILE WARDEN FUNDING SCHEME - LESLEY MCFARLANE 
 
 The committee noted the extension of the Mobile Warden funding scheme. 
  
7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next scheduled Grants Advisory Committee was an extraordinary committee on 

Friday 20 December, starting at 10:00am. 
The next regular meeting of the Grants Advisory Committee was Friday 31 January 2020. 

  

  
The Meeting ended at 11.30 a.m. 

 

 

Page 4



 
 
  
REPORT TO: 
 

Grants Advisory Committee 31 January 2020 

LEAD CABINET MEMBER: 
 

Councillor John Williams Lead Cabinet Member for 
Finance 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

Mike Hill 

 

 
 

Community Chest Grant: Funding Applications 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. To consider new applications received between 1 December and 31 December to the 

Community Chest funding scheme during 2019/20 as well as 2 applications received 
between 1  November and 31 November and an application received between 1 October 
and 31 October. 

 
 
2. No   
  

Recommendations 
 
3. It is recommended that the Grants Advisory Committee considers all applications for 

funding that are set out in Appendix A to this report and makes a recommendation to the 
Lead Cabinet Member regarding the level of funding (£0 - £1,000) to be awarded for each 
or defer a decision, if further information is required, or reject an application if it doesn’t 
comply with the grants’ criteria.  

 
 

Reasons for Recommendations 
   
4. The Grants Advisory Committee’s role is to consider and make recommendations to the 

Lead Cabinet Member responsible for grants, or Cabinet as appropriate, including, but 
not limited to: 
 
a) Review of the Council’s grants schemes to ensure they reflect Council priorities. 
b) Design of any new or revised grants schemes, including consideration of criteria and 

guidance applicable in respect of each scheme.  
c) Consideration of applications made under the Council’s grants schemes.  

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

Details 
 
5. The Community Chest is grant funding available to voluntary and community sector 

groups, charities and public sector bodies wishing to further improve quality of life in 
South Cambridgeshire.  Applicants may apply for up to £1,000 and the community activity 
or project must deliver one or more of the following:  

 

 Improvements to community buildings and spaces (i.e. village halls / pavilions 
/ play areas etc)  

 Repairs to historic buildings / monuments / memorials 

 Equipment / capital purchase 

 Materials 

 Start-up costs (may include training of staff / volunteers, hall hire and other 
revenue costs). 

 
6. Guidance notes and eligibility criteria can be found at Appendix B.  
 
7. Total amount of funding made available for 2019/20 is £58,140.00.  

 
8. On 27 September 2019, Grants Advisory Committee recommended to the Lead Cabinet 

Member for finance that £20,000.00, for 2018/19 and 2019/20 from the discontinued Elite 
Athlete Award Scheme, be allocated to the Community Chest Grant. This decision was 
taken by the Lead Cabinet Member for Finance on 3 October bringing the total pot up to 
£78,140.00.   

 
9. Cambridge City Brass Band, who were successful in receiving £1,000 in 2018/19, were 

not able to spend their funding allocation and returned a cheque on 04/10/2019 bringing 
the total pot up to £79,140.00.  

 
10. 1st Bourn Scout Group who were successful in 2018/19 had to seek planning permission 

prior to receiving the grant so they were not funded £1,000 until 11/12/2019.  
 
11. There are 7 new applications to consider at this meeting totalling £6,212. The amount of 

funding remaining for allocation is £45,018.87. A summary of the applications can be 
found at Appendix A (copies of the applications forms are available from the Sustainable 
Communities and Partnerships Team upon request).  

 

Options 
 
12. The Grants Advisory Committee may consider all applications for funding that are set out 

in Appendix A of this report and recommend to the Lead Cabinet Member to: 
 

13.  
a. award the amount of funding requested, 
b. award an alternative amount of funding, including zero funding,  
c. defer a decision, if further information is required from grant applicants, or 
d. reject an application stating the reason for this.  

 

Page 6



 

Implications 
 

14. The are no significant implications 

Risks/Opportunities 
 
15. Applicants are required to provide supporting documents including copies of their 

constitution, financial accounts and quotes where applicable. Applicants must agree to 
the grant conditions before fund are released. 

Consultation responses 
 
16. Local members have been consulted on applications that directly affect their local area.  
 

Effect on Council Priority Areas 

17. The corporate aims are referenced in the criteria and guidance notes for the Community 
Chest.  

Background Papers 
 
Grants Advisory Committee, 27 November 2018 
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1096&MId=7433&Ver=4 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A: Applications Summary 
Appendix B: Guidance notes for Community Chest 19/20 
 

Report Author:  
Ellen Bridges – Project Officer  
Telephone: (01954) 713 294 
 

Page 7

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1096&MId=7433&Ver=4


This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix A 

Applications Summary 
 
 

COMMUNITY CHEST GRANT APPLICATIONS RECEIVED: 1 OCTOBER TO 31 OCTOBER 2019/20 
 

  
Name of 
applicant 

 
Type of 
organisation 

 
CCVS 
Registered 

 
Village(s)  
affected 

 
Project   
description 

 
Type of 
 project 

 
Total cost of 
project (£) 

 
Total 
applied for  
(£) 

 
Land owned 
by PC 

 
Status of 
documentation 

 
1 

 
Elsworth Pre 
School 

 
Preschool  
 

 
No 

 
Elsworth and 
nearby 
villages 

 
To replace a fridge 
with one that is 
more energy 
efficient 
 

 
Equipment/Ca
pital Purchase 

 
337.00 
 

 
317.00 
 

 
N/A 

 
COMPLETE  

 
 
 

COMMUNITY CHEST GRANT APPLICATIONS RECEIVED: 1 NOVEMBER TO 31 NOVEMBER 2019/20 
 
 

  
Name of 
applicant 

 
Type of 
organisation 

 
CCVS  
Registered 

 
Village(s) 
affected 

 
Project 
description 

 
Type of 
project 

 
Total cost of 
project (£) 

 
Total 
applied for  
(£) 

 
Land owned 
by PC 

 
Status of 
documentation  

 
2 

 
Parkrun UK 

 
A free weekly 
run  

 
No 

 
Cambourne 
and 
surrounding 
villages 

 
To start-up 
Cambourne Junior 
Parkrun 
 

 
Start-up Costs 

 
3000.00 

 
1000.00 
 

 
YES 
 

 
COMPLETE 

P
age 9



Appendix A 

 
3 

 
Gamlingay 
Community 
Centre 

 
Community 
Centre 

 
No 

 
Gamlingay 
and 
surrounding 
villages 

 
To purchase a 
newer second-had 
bowls carpet and 
winder. 

 
Equipment/Ca
pital purchase 

 
1815.00 

 
1000.00 

 
N/A 

 
PENDING  

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY CHEST GRANT APPLICATIONS RECEIVED: 1 DECEMBER TO 31 DECEMBER 2019/20 
 

  
Name of 
applicant 

 
Type of 
organisation 

 
CCVS  
Registered 

 
Village(s) 
affected 

 
Project 
description 

 
Type of 
     project 

 
Total cost of 
project (£) 

 
Total 
applied for  
(£) 

 
Land owned 
by PC 

 
Status of 
documentation  

 
4 

 
Fowlmere 
Fundraisers  

 
Events 
coordinating 
group  
 

 
No 

 
Fowlmere 
and 
surrounding 
villages  
 

 
To hold a 
pantomime in the 
local village and 
then run future 
events in the 
community.  

 
Start-up costs 

 
1600.00 

 
1000.00 

 
N/A 

 
PENDING 

 
5 

 
Cambridge 
Past, Present 
and Future  

 
Local charity 
who protect 
the green 
spaces, 
historic 
building of 
Cambridge 
and the 
surrounding 
area.  

 
Yes 

 
Wandlebury 

 
To purchase plants 
and pond dipping 
equipment for the 
Wandlebury Pond 
Project 

 
Improvements 
to community 
buildings and 
spaces/Equip
ment  

 
49,265.00 

 
996.00 

 
N/A 

 
COMPLETE 

P
age 10



Appendix A 

 
6 

 
Abington 
Allotment and 
Leisure 
Gardeners’ 
Association 

 
Allotment 
Association 

 
No 

 
Great 
Abington and 
Little 
Abington 

 
To purchase a 
petrol-engine 
shredder  

 
Equipment/Ca
pital Purchase 

 
899.00 

 
899.00 

 
N/A 

 
COMPLETE 

 
7 

 
Fowlmere 
Recreation 
Ground and 
Village Hall 

 
Recreation 
Ground and 
Village Hall 

 
No 

 
Fowlmere 
and the 
surrounding 
areas 

 
To re-level and re-
gravel the village 
hall car park as part 
of an overall project 
to improvement the 
car park and 
changing rooms  
 

 
Improvements 
to community 
buildings and 
spaces 

 
10,401.44 

 
1,000.00 

 
YES 

 
COMPLETE 

 

P
age 11



T
his page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix B 

Guidance notes for Community Chest 19/20 

What is the Community Chest? 

The Community Chest is grant funding available to voluntary and community sector groups, 

charities and public sector bodies wishing to further improve quality of life in South 

Cambridgeshire. 

Who can apply?  

Applicants must: 

 Either be a non-profit group OR organisation based in South Cambridgeshire or 

benefiting South Cambridgeshire residents, OR be a public sector body with a 

demonstrable community focus (individuals and businesses are not eligible) 

 Be a Parish Council or Parish Meeting with fewer than 160 registered electors 

 Have a written constitution or mission statement 

 Have an elected committee or representative steering group 

 Be able to provide an up to date copy of their accounts and any relevant protection 

policies 

If you have questions about these criteria, please contact us using the details below.    

If your organisation does not have a written constitution, mission statement and/or relevant 

protection policies please contact Cambridge Council for Voluntary Service for advice in meeting 

these requirements.  Please call 01223 464696 or email enquiries@cambridgecvs.org.uk  

What must the project deliver? 

The community activity or project must: 

 Help us deliver one or more of the following aims: 

o Promote healthy and active communities 

o Enable inclusive communities 

o Develop skills 

o Enhance the natural environment 

 Meet local need and leave a legacy for the community 

 Ensure equality of access 

What can be funded? 

The community activity or project should be one of the following: 

 Improvements to community buildings and spaces (i.e. village halls/pavilions/play areas 

etc) 

 Repairs to Historic Buildings/Monuments/Memorials 

 Equipment/Capital Purchase 

 Materials 

 ‘Start-up’ costs (may include training of staff/volunteers, hall hire and other revenue 

costs) 

 

 

Page 13

mailto:enquiries@cambridgecvs.org.uk


Appendix B 

What cannot be funded? 

 On-going revenue costs or overheads (e.g. salaries, rent, advertising, promotional 

materials) 

 Projects that replace funding by other public sector bodies, including parish councils (e.g. 

youth services, highways) 

 Costs associated with preparing/printing Parish Plans 

 Costs associated with Neighbourhood Watch schemes 

 Costs associated with Community Speedwatch schemes or other traffic initiatives 

 Costs associated with purchasing defibrillators 

 Items that would only benefit ‘individuals’ and not the group (e.g. sports kits) 

 Projects that have previously received Community Chest funding in the same financial 

year 

 

How much can be applied for? 

The maximum award is £1,000 in any single financial year (April-March) and can be for 100% of 

the project’s costs unless the initiative is on parish council land, in which case a 50% 

contribution from the parish council is expected.   

If there is high demand for funding it may mean that the Council is only able to make a 

contribution to your project.  The Council reserves the right to prioritise based on funding 

available, size of electorate, parish precept, indices of deprivation, number and type of 

applications received at any given time, priorities for the financial year and value for money.  

Eligibility does not guarantee grant funding.   

When can groups apply? 

The Community Chest opens in April and October each year, with 50% of the annual budget 

released at each point.  Groups can apply at any time during the financial year until the funding 

is fully allocated for that period. 

What supporting documentation is required? 

 A copy of your organisation’s constitution or mission statement  

 A copy of your latest accounts (audited if available)  

 A quote for the community activity or project  

 

In addition, the following will be required if relevant to the project: 

 Appropriate protection policies: children, young people, vulnerable adults 

 Public Rights of Way consent from landowner 

 Any other relevant material that would support your application 

How will the grant be paid? 

If successful, the applicant will receive the grant payment once we have received 

acknowledgement of the grant offer and acceptance of the terms and conditions. 

What are the conditions of funding? 

Groups that are awarded a grant will be expected to comply with the following conditions as a 

minimum: 

Page 14



Appendix B 

 Funding must only be used for the agreed purpose and spent within 12-months of the 

award being made (unless otherwise agreed in writing) 

 Any publicity must acknowledge the award provided 

 Unused grant must be returned to South Cambridgeshire District Council 

 An end of project evaluation must be submitted to South Cambridgeshire District Council 

within 3-months of project completion.  Details about this are available on the SCDC 

website 

Any award will not be means tested but applicants will be expected to have sought other means 

of local funding, especially from the parish council who may have funds available through 

planning developments (S106) or through its precept (S137). 

For further information please go to: 

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/communitychest  

Contact Details:  duty.communities@scambs.gov.uk , 01954 713070 

Page 15

https://www.scambs.gov.uk/communitychest
mailto:duty.communities@scambs.gov.uk


This page is left blank intentionally.



 
 
  

REPORT TO: 
 

Grants Advisory Committee 31/01/2020 

LEAD CABINET MEMBER: 
 

Cllr John Williams 
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

Lesley McFarlane  

 

 
 

District-wide coverage of Mobile Warden Schemes 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. There have been Mobile Warden Schemes within some parishes of South 

Cambridgeshire for over 20 years.  The schemes have historically been community-led 
and this has resulted in inequitable cover across the district with large geographical areas 
including some of our most isolated parishes, or parishes with greater numbers of older 
people, without a scheme.   

2. The schemes serve a number of purposes, namely they enable older people to remain 
living at home independently for longer; avoid earlier transfer into care; avoid 
unnecessary hospital admission; enable more expedient hospital discharge and provide 
daily contact to people who would otherwise live in isolation and/or away from their 
families. 

3. Enabling older and / or vulnerable people to have greater access to a local scheme is a 
key priority of the Council’s Business Plan 2019-2024.  This is aligned to the predicted 
high growth in the over 65 year old population over the next 20 years and in recognition 
that with age comes increased risk of deteriorating health, loneliness and feelings of 
isolation.   

4. This will likely be a key decision should additional unbudgeted finance be required. 

Recommendations 
 
5. It is recommended that the Grants Advisory Committee considers the options for 

financing increased coverage of Mobile Warden Schemes prioritising villages where there 
are higher numbers of older people in order to ensure there is a service in areas of most 
need across the District.  This report highlights the options and makes a 
recommendation. 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 
   
6. According to Age UK, isolation and loneliness is more prevalent in people who are aged 

65+, living alone, and/or have a chronic health condition.  Feeling lonely and isolated can 
be very harmful to health.  Research shows that lacking social connections is as 
damaging to our health as smoking 15 cigarettes a day (Holt-Lunstad, 2015).    Academic 
research is clear that preventing and alleviating loneliness is vital to enabling older 
people to remain independent for as long as possible.  

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



7. Life expectancy in South Cambridgeshire is higher than the national and county 
averages, however, we now live in a society that is living longer, but with fewer years of 
life lived healthily. 

 
8. The older population across South Cambridgeshire is set to rise over the period 2017-

2035 by 49%.  Over the same period the over 90’s will increase by 137%. 
 
9. According to the most recent health data released by the Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment for South Cambridgeshire 2019 the following conditions are set to increase 
as follows: 

a. Moderate physical disability: 19.4% 
b. Serious physical disability: 20.6% 
c. Mod/Serious personal care disability: 19.8% 
d. Common mental disorder: 17.8% 
e. A fall: 65.4% 
f. Dementia: 93.4% 
 

10. All of these conditions will create increased demand for specialist housing as well as 
health and social care services.     

 
11. An increasingly socially mobile society together with the high cost of housing in South 

Cambridgeshire is leading to fewer families remaining in the villages in which they grew 
up leading to greater dislocation of families and leaving older people more exposed to 
loneliness and distant family connections. 

 

Details 
  
12. Currently there are 14 schemes covering a total of 31 parishes (see map at appendix D).   

Many of the community-led schemes have been in existence for over 20 years, 
developed in recognition that there was a need to provide a service to support and take 
care of older, more vulnerable members.    

 
13. The schemes employ a range of approaches in order to support their clients including 

home visits and telephone calls; thus also creating opportunities within their communities 
for local volunteering.    This creates a vital service for people to:  

a) Know someone cares; 
b) Keep in touch with the outside world;  
c) Receive medication, newspapers and food; 
d) Remain living independently for as long as possible where they may 

otherwise be transferred into care or hospital; 
e) Expedite hospital discharge    

 
14. The schemes are available long-term, or on a short-term basis following illness or 

hospital discharge to help get people back on their feet who are thereafter able to live 
independently at home, but who otherwise might not regain their health and 
independence. 
 
Linking with other services 

15. The wardens link with other services and provide a signposting role to the client, opening 
doors and opportunities to access other clubs and services which help to support them to 
live independently, this includes helping clients apply for additional finance if eligible 
(such as pension credit and disability living allowance or housing benefits);  some 
schemes also have good relationships with the GP practice and can liaise with practice 
staff if a client is poorly; responding to letters to ensure bills are paid or appointments are 

Page 18



not missed.  The main aim of the mobile warden service, however, is to check-in with 
vulnerable people to make sure they’re well, to have a chat and show they care with 
people who may not otherwise have any human contact on a day to day basis. 

 
Referrals  
16. Referrals come from a range of sources: many clients self-refer following word of mouth; 

some schemes receive referrals from the police, the voluntary sector (e.g. Care Network), 
GP surgery, parish newsletters and ministers, as well as the family members of the 
person in need of care.  A number of the schemes would like closer ties with the local 
GPs and practice nurses and believe that this relationship has become more distant over 
time, given the many changes to how primary care services have been delivered over the 
duration of some of the schemes.  However, this presents an opportunity for the service 
to be part of the wider community health and social care offering. 

 
Self-employed/parish-employed warden salaries 
17. All schemes employ wardens on a part-time basis with circa 20 hour/week contracts, and 

each warden will look after approximately 10-20 clients in their patch.  There is no set 
warden salary, each scheme sets its own budget for salaries.   The wardens are also 
supported by volunteers to provide holiday cover and any periods of sickness absence.  
At Harston for example, this cover is provided by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Do we need a section here about the Age UK model given that we have covered self-
employed / parish-employed wardens above or are these included here?? 

18.  
 
Client Fees 
19. Every scheme has a different client fee, the scale ranges from £5 per week up to £12 per 

week.  The majority of schemes charge fees of approximately £6-7/week.   To improve 
sustainability the Council recommends to schemes that a minimum fee should be set at 
£6.50/week because the higher the fee, the more sustainable the service. 

 
Ongoing training and support for Wardens 
20. Due to the nature of the role of mobile wardens, many in this post work in isolation.   

Speaking to the schemes, there was genuine interest from wardens to link with each 
other for peer support.  Due to the changing nature of the health and social care system, 
some felt they would benefit from ongoing support and training in their roles together with 
more formal ongoing training in safeguarding, deprivation of liberty and first aid. It was 
proposed that the council create a forum which provides opportunities for wardens to 
meet, share information, peer support and create opportunities for ongoing learning and 
professional development.  

 
Growing existing schemes 
21. Each of the community-led schemes (with the exception of Melbourn) had no interest in 

extending their scheme beyond the parish boundary but indicated they are more than 
happy to support other schemes to set up. 

 
Sustainability of Existing Schemes 
22. All schemes rely on external funding to sustain them.  The schemes want to keep the 

client fees as affordable as possible and are reluctant to increase fees on this basis. 
 
23. Earlier this year, parishes without an existing scheme were contacted to gauge interest in 

setting up a scheme.   16 parishes responded with a request for further information. (See 
appendix B). 

 
24. Parishes without a scheme that are considering setting one up have all expressed 

concern about long-term viability and the uncertainty arising from grant funding 

Page 19



applications and this is posing a potential barrier for some parishes to committing to 
adopting a scheme. 

 
Working in closer collaboration with health partners 
25. Some wardens report missed opportunities to work more collaboratively with GP 

practices. All schemes would like to extend opportunities to support residents who 
needed extra support following illness, or discharge from hospital, so forming closer links 
with hospital discharge teams and Primary Care Network link workers should be 
encouraged. 
 
 

Existing Schemes 
26. Of the 14 existing schemes, 7 are run by Age UK on behalf of the parish with investment 

from the Parish, District and County Councils (see table 2 below).  The other 7 are 
community schemes set up and managed by a board of trustees (with the exception of 
Milton, which is run by the Parish Council).  They bring in funding from various sources, 
supported by organisations such as Care Network with training and guidance (see table 1 
below).  
 

27. This disparate, largely community-led model has resulted in inconsistent cover across the 
district which creates inequalities and inequity in service and a priority for the Council is 
to provide greater coverage across the District to address this. 

 
28. The challenge for the District Council is to encourage Parish Councils, particularly those 

with higher populations of older people, to set up a scheme, be it independently or 
through the Age UK model.  Both models require investment from the parish. 

 
 
Table 1 : Funding for Community-led Schemes 2019/2020 
This table illustrates how the community-led schemes are currently funded.  Each model 
differs in how it seeks funding, administers its scheme and pays its employees.  Income from 
service users is included in blue, where known. 
 

Village 
Max people 
benefitting last 
year 

Funding 
Sources 2019/20 

Funding Sum 
2019/20 (£) 

Cottenham 22 SCDC 1,800.00 

    Parish Council 1,150.00 

    CCF (Not confirmed) 2,499.00 

    Rotary (TBA) 0.00 

    Subtotal 5,449.00 

    Service users 4,000.00 

    Total 9,949.00 

        

Harston 15 SCDC 1,250.00 

    Parish Council 2,750.00 

    Covenanted Gifts 2,000.00 

    HMRC Gift Aid 1,000.00 

    Subtotal 7,000.00 

    Service Users 4,200.00 

    Total 11,200.00 

        

Page 20



    SCDC 250.00 

Haslingfield 20 Parish Council 3,000.00 

    Subtotal 3,250.00 

    Service Users  7,802.00 

    Total 11,052.00 

        

Melbourn 47 SCDC 2,200.00 

    CCC 7,721.00 

    Melbourne PC 6,500.00 

    Meldreth PC 1,500.00 

    Shepreth PC 600.00 

    Subtotal 18,521.00 

    Service users 11,626.00 

    Total 30,147.00 

        

Milton 20 SCDC 2,155.00 

    Milton PC  16,385.00 

    Milton Charities 2,000.00 

    Subtotal 20,540.00 

    Service Users  7,000.00 

    Total 27,540.00 

        

 The Mordens & 
Litlington MWS 

 25 SCDC 2,155.00 

  
3 x Parish 
Councils 

1,800.00 

    Grants other 300.00 

  Other 160.00 

    Subtotal 4,415.00 

    Service users 5,895.00 

    Total 10,310.00 

        

Great Shelford 36 SCDC 1,000.00 

  
Great Shelford 
PC 

2,500.00 

    Shelford Feast 1,000.00 

    Subtotal 4,500.00 

    Service users  
4794.00 

 

    Total 9,294.00 

        

    
Total excl 
Service User 
Fees 

63,675.00 

 185 GRAND TOTAL 109,942.00 

 
 

Page 21



 
Table 2: Age UK Schemes  

Village 
Max no people 
benefitting last 
year 

Funding sources 2019/20 
Funding sum 
2019/20 (£) 

The Small 
Villages 
Scheme:  

Weston Colville, 
West Wratting, 

Balsham, 
Linton, West 

Wickham, 
Horseheath, 

Shudy Camps 
and Castle 

Camps. 
Individual 

parish schemes 
in Swavesey, 
Histon, Girton, 

Impington, 
Waterbeach, 
Teversham, 
Stapleford 

129 across all 
schemes 

SCDC 13,200.00 

CCC 12,132.00 

Parishes 18,975.00 

Donations 3,500.00 

Subtotal 47,807.00 

Service User Income 23,671.00 

TOTAL 71,478.00 

 
 
Parishes without schemes 
29. There are 71 parishes without a Mobile Warden Scheme.   To provide complete cover 

across the District would require setting up many additional schemes.    
 

In order to assess the cost to the District of expanding coverage, officers have 
identified a number of “strategic locations” or parishes, based on their resident 
population of people aged 65 years plus and by their geographical location. 
The following parishes have been identified as strategic:  

 Papworth / Elsworth 

 Sawston 

 Thriplow 

 Gamlingay 

 Willingham 

 Whittlesford 

 6 villages along the A428 / A1198 corridor (Hardwick, Caldecote, Comberton, 
Wimpole, Bourn, Toft) 
 

30. These parishes are identified as strategic because: 
 

a) They are geographically rural areas with no existing cover (A428/A1198 corridor) 
b) They are Parishes with a higher population of older residents (aged 65+) 

according to the local CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) profiles and data from 
the Cambridgeshire Insight, Parish Profiles tool. 

 
31. Age UK has provided an estimate (appendix A) for setting up schemes in the strategic 

parishes above.  If prioritised, these parishes could be part 1 of a staged approach to the 
District improving its coverage of mobile warden schemes. Part 2 of a staged approach 
might include the remaining parishes at point 22 above who expressed an interest in 
knowing more (16 additional parishes).   This would leave 43 parishes still requiring 
cover. 

Page 22



 

Options 
 
The options for increasing Mobile Warden Scheme coverage across the District of South 
Cambridgeshire are set out below: 
 
 
32. Option 1 
 

Create a separate grant fund, distinct from the existing Mobile Warden Scheme grant 
fund, dedicated to setting up new or expanded schemes only.  This would be open to 
parishes, community groups and established charitable organisations for the creation of 
new schemes and the expansion of existing schemes.   This would provide choice to the 
Parishes in which approach to take e.g. bring in an external provider or encourage a 
community-led scheme.    
 
Parishes with a larger, older populations, or those highlighted in paragraph 29 and 30 
above would be prioritised.  Any other parishes interested in setting up a new scheme, 
which have not been identified above but would like to apply for full funding, would also 
be considered on a first come, first served basis. 
 
The separate grant fund would enable parishes to bid for full funding for new schemes for 
the first 2 years, (April 2020- March 2022).  Thereafter, from 2022 these new schemes 
would be expected to apply for funding in the same way that existing schemes currently 
do. (see Table 1).  

 
 

33. Option 2:   
 

In order to introduce schemes into those parishes highlighted as strategic (see paragraph 
29), the fastest approach would be to fully fund an external provider to give full and 
continuous cover for the first 2 years with the caveat that Parishes adopt these schemes 
from 2022, and apply for continued funding in the same way that existing schemes 
currently do.    
 
The cost of fully funding the “strategic” sites has been estimated to be approximately 
£200,000 per annum.   
 

 
 
34. Option 3 
 

Provide a combination of both options 1 and 2.   Members would need to agree how to 
divide funding which would facilitate the option for Parishes who want to apply to set up 
their own scheme, supporting the desired community-led approach whilst retaining a 
portion of funding to set up schemes in Parishes where there are higher populations of 
older people but where the Parish is not engaged.    The Council could then ask external 
providers to bid to set up schemes in these communities. 

Implications 
 

35. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk, equality and 
diversity, climate change, and any other key issues, the following implications have been 
considered:- 

Page 23



 

Financial 
36. In seeking an external provider to deliver the identified schemes across the district within 

the two-year deadline, the contract value is estimated to be approximately £200,000 
which exceeds the procurement threshold of £181,000 for EU procurement and therefore 
the full weight of regulations will apply.   This will involve advertising in the official journal 
of the European Union, competitively tendering and awarding to the highest scoring 
bidder. 

 

Risks/Opportunities 
 
37. Option 1 
 
Full funding for 2 years via a grant application process for parishes interested in setting up a 
new scheme or wishing to extend an existing scheme.   
 
The risks/opportunities associated with option 1 are: 
 

a) It allows for a scheme to be adopted at the outset by the Parish Council and it 
is, therefore, more likely to be sustained following cessation of 2-years full-
funding.   

b) There is no certainty that the Parishes identified as ‘strategic’ take up the 
offer. 

c) It risks some existing schemes requesting an uplift to match the proposed 
contribution to new schemes.   

d) It could potentially be resource intensive with regard to officer time in liaising 
with parishes and administering the application process.    

 
 

38. Option 2 
 
Procurement to an external provider for full funding for 2 years of new schemes identified by 
the District Council.  
 
The risks/opportunities associated with option 2 are: 

 
a) This could provide mobile warden scheme coverage across the desired 

strategic sites more expeditiously.  
b) There would be no guarantee that the parishes would wish to contribute to 

the scheme following year two and thus schemes may close after full 
funding expires.  This could likely result in clients left without cover and 
associated poor publicity.  

c) If an external provider sets up schemes, the costs are likely to be higher. 
d) An external provider would be asked to work with Parishes to assist and 

help source funding following cessation of full funding. 
e) The sum concerned is high enough that if this were not treated as grant 

funding, the value of any contract would meet the threshold for EU 
procurement (>£180,000) and this could potentially delay the 
implementation of desired coverage within two years (see financial chapter 
above). 

 

Page 24



39. Option 3 
 

Divide the funding allocation into two streams e.g. 50% grant funding and 50% procurement. 
 
The risks/opportunities associated with option 3 are: 
 

a) The EU procurement threshold of £180,000 would be avoided, although it 
would still necessitate a procurement approach.   

b) It would offer choice to the Parishes as to whether they choose to set up 
their own scheme or opt to engage an external provider. 

c) It could potentially be resource intensive with regard to officer time in 
liaising with parishes and administering the application process.    

d) How to allocate appropriate levels of funding to both sources, such 
ensuring there is sufficient for Parishes opting for grant funding as in 
option 1 above; ensuring there is sufficient left to set up schemes in 
locations identified as ‘strategic’. 

e) The risks and opportunities of options 1 and 2 above are distributed. 
 

 
40. Other considerations:  
 

a) All new schemes would be funded in full whereas existing schemes receive only a 
contribution from SCDC towards the total running costs, causing inequity in how 
schemes are funded. 

 
b) In 2019/20, the amount of Council grant funding applied for was £31,359.00.  The 

amount awarded was £20,110.00    Schemes sought additional funding to the 
value of £71,227.00 from other sources.    

 
c) The existing schemes are not sustainable without grant contributions and other 

sources of funding and the amount of SCDC grant funding has remained static for 
many years.  With the potential for more schemes to be set up, the amount of 
grant funding will need to be reviewed by 2022.  

 

Equality and Diversity 
41. Any decisions arising from this report will be subject to an equality and diversity report. 
 

Consultation responses 
42. Each parish without a scheme has been consulted by telephone or email to gauge their 

interest in setting up a scheme.  A meeting or telephone call has taken place with each of 
the existing schemes in order to complete background information for this report. 

 
43. Further consultation has taken place with three larger parishes (identified as having 

larger older populations) to gauge their interest in adopting a 2 year fully-funded scheme 
with the caveat of taking on grant funding following withdrawal of full funding at the end of 
the contract.  Every parish expressed concern with regards to the sustainability of 
schemes and sources of continued funding, particularly in light of reduced health and 
social care budgets.  This concern creates a real barrier to the adoption of schemes even 
with the prospect of full funding for the first two years. 

 

Page 25



Effect on Council Priority Areas 
 

A modern and caring Council 
 
This piece of work helps to deliver the provision of grants to community and voluntary groups 
to help them carry out projects to benefit local people including the development of a 
business case for increasing the coverage of mobile warden schemes across the district 
 

Background Papers 

None 

 

 

Report Author:  
Lesley McFarlane 
Development Officer, Health Specialist 
Telephone: 01954 713443 
 

 
 
 

Page 26


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Community Chest: Funding Applications
	Community Chest Grant Report 31012020- Appendix A - Applications Summary
	Community Chest Grant Report 31012020- Appendix B - Guidance

	5 Mobile Warden Schemes - Lesley McFarlane

